Final Final Final

Desert Tortoise Council Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting

22 August 2020 Zoom Online Meeting

CALL TO ORDER

In Ken MacDonald's absence, the meeting was called to order by Cristina Jones at 10:00 a.m. Action items are in blue, with responsible parties in red. Motions made, seconded, and approved (or not) are shown in bold red font.

Attendees: Kristin Berry, Greer Dolby, Peter Woodman, Judy Hohman, Cristina Jones, Maggie Fusari, Mari Quillman, Bruce Palmer, Michael Tuma, Becky Jones, Joe Probst, Ed LaRue, and Michael Vamstad. **Absent**: Halle Kohn, Ken MacDonald. **Guests**: None.

- **A.** Welcome/Announcements/Introductions: Joe Probst and Becky Jones will need to leave early, so we should hear their reports and involve them in pertinent discussion at the beginning of the meeting.
- **B. Review Agenda**: New issues were incorporated as needed.
- a. Meeting Minutes of 6 June 2020: Ed LaRue prepared draft minutes at the last Board meeting in a virtual session, which were distributed, reviewed, and approved today as final with no changes. Motion made (Joe Probst), seconded (Kristin Berry), and unanimously approved to accept the draft minutes as amended to be final.

C. Review of Board Actions since Last Board Meeting:

- **a.** Contribution to Turtle Survival Alliance: On 7/17/2020, Ed LaRue made a motion that was seconded at the time by Maggie Fusari to provide a \$500 contribution to Turtle Survival Alliance in appreciation of their upcoming technical support to the November 2020 Zoom course. On 7/23/2020 in an email, Ken MacDonald reported that the motion passed with a majority of Board members supporting the motion.
- **D. Next Meeting Date**: The next meeting of the Board of Directors will be a Zoom meeting, between 10:00 a.m. and approximately 4:00 p.m., on 21 November 2020. Since we are missing five people at the end of the day (three left early and two were not present), Cristina Jones will set up a Doodle Poll to determine when our January 2021 Board meeting should occur.

E. Special Items:

- a. California petition to state-list the desert tortoise as endangered: Several emails were distributed this morning by Ed LaRue to the Board indicating that the petition to upgrade the listing of Agassiz's desert tortoise in California from threatened to endangered has recently been accepted by the California Fish and Game Commission as complete. Becky Jones reported that these determinations indicate that the petition is acceptable and that it will be considered further in October at the next Commission meeting, at which time, if there is a favorable decision, there would be a 90-day review period. Board member(s) attending the Commission's call on October 14 or 15, 2020 would be advantageous as public comments will be solicited. Kristin Berry indicated that discussing the recent fires' effects on tortoises would be advisable, particularly on the Cima Dome in the East Mojave of California and in the Red Cliffs Desert Reserve in Utah (about 40% of the new fires in Utah were on previously burned areas and about 20% were outside tortoise habitats, and impacts are similar to the catastrophic fires of 2005 that resulted in 15% decline in the resident tortoise population). Becky Jones will keep us apprised of the time and date when we can participate in the Commission's next public meeting. Kristin Berry, Cristina Jones, Judy Hohman, and Mari Quillman will craft a letter, to be signed by Ken MacDonald, with new information (particularly fires) supporting the California listing of Mojave desert tortoise. There was additional conversation about soliciting money, perhaps through GoFundMe concerning impacts of fires, focusing on California. This money may be used, for example, to facilitate field studies to see how many tortoises died and how much habitat burned in the Cima Dome fire. Greer Dolby, Michael Vamstad, and/or Mari Quillman will contact Dr. Deborah Hughson to see what the best form of support may be, money or personnel, for that fire in the East Mojave Preserve.
- **b.** Arizona petition to add Sonoran desert tortoise to the candidate list: The Sonoran desert tortoise has been moved onto the Candidate List for federal listing, with 12 months to consider if a listing as threatened or endangered is warranted, to be determined by USFWS, which determined in 2015 that federal listing was not warranted. So, at the end of one year, if the listing is warranted, the process would then proceed to a formal listing process. Arizona Game and Fish is providing recently gathered data to inform this decision. Both Cristina Jones and Greer Dolby have recused themselves from commenting on this issue.
- c. Rabbit Hemorrhagic Disease Virus-2 (RHDV2) tortoise concerns: Mari Quillman's crews found 19 dead rabbits in the Mountain Springs area, west of Palm Springs, which is not in tortoise habitat, which they reported to California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). Michael Tuma reported his crews are using Vircon S as a decontaminant to address this disease, and Michael Vamstad indicated there are heightened protocols at Joshua Tree National Park. Mari Quillman will work with Sky Esser to post CDFW's protocols on our website, and Cristina Jones will provide information for Arizona.
- d. Mojave Desert Tortoise: Maggie Fusari recommended that we use "Mojave desert tortoise" instead of "Agassiz's desert tortoise" in comment letters and other Council social media as a proactive gesture of integrity. Kristin Berry and Michael Tuma thought "Agassiz's desert tortoise" was more appropriate because 40% of the range is in the Colorado and western Sonoran deserts, not in the Mojave Desert. Maggie Fusari will draft a document about the naming of Agassiz's desert tortoise to be added to our website. Though not a formal motion, there was a vote of 9 yes, 3 no, and 1 abstention to publish our documents and use on our website "Mojave desert tortoise" with Agassiz's desert tortoise in parenthesis.

e. California State Listing of Joshua Tree: The Center for Biological Diversity petitioned CDFW to state-list the Joshua Tree in California. Mari Quillman reported that the California Fish and Game Commission is continuing with the petition, which will resume in September, and that this is the second time a formal decision has been postponed. There are anecdotal accounts of people removing and vandalizing Joshua trees in protest of the possible listing. If there is a formal decision to go forward, it would be treated for 12 months as a candidate for listing, during which time it would be protected as if listed.

OFFICER/COMMITTEE REPORTS

- **F. Treasurer's Report**: The Treasurer's Report was distributed by Joe Probst. Joe's report showed that our income for 2020 through August is \$94,930.67, expenses were \$159,677.73, with total assets of \$121,508.72. Our insurance policy cost us about \$5,700/year. Joe recommended that we cancel our current policy, and he will research another insurance provider. However, since the policy covers our students at workshops, field trips, and Board of directors liability, it was suggested that we postpone the cancellation. Joe indicated there are actually three policies. After discussion, it was agreed that Joe Probst will (1) provide us with copies of the policies, (2) a summary of what they cover, and (3) results of comparison shopping on new policies or revisions of the existing ones. Motion made (Mari Quillman), seconded (Greer Dolby), and unanimously approved to accept the Treasurer's Report as final.
- **G.** Corresponding Secretary's Report: Becky Jones reported there have been a few inquiries about classes and miscellaneous issues like job opportunities. Most correspondence is via email with only a few hard copy items received.
- **H. Agency Coordinating Committee's Report**: Cristina Jones reported there has been no recent activity, but she plans to speak with Roy Averill-Murray of the USFWS in the next week-or-so about further agency coordination.
- **I.** Membership Committee's Report: Mari Quillman provided the report, which was discussed. There are 382 active members, which is up by five individuals since June. There was a committee meeting on July 5, 2020. They discussed recruiting students and pairing them with professional researchers for fieldwork experiences. Ideas for increasing the membership were discussed, including offering incentives for referring a friend, reaching out to classes through Zoom meetings, offering education and outreach to kids at home, offering an educational perspective to try to recruit new members, offering Airbnb online experiences, and recruiting university students. The committee is still working on new ways to recruit new members. They are also considering how some of their activities can be transferred to other committees. The discussion was that Board member visits to professional societies and other events would be more applicable to the Education and Outreach Committee, which would involve expenses attributed to that committee rather than the Membership Committee.
- **J. Nominating Committee's Report**: Michael Tuma indicated there was little to report. Michael Tuma will follow-up with Paul Delaney at Copper Mountain College to see if he is still interested in becoming a Board member since expressing his interest at the 2020 Symposium. We still need new Board members in academia and someone from Utah, as we still lack representatives for that state.

- **K. Ecosystems Advisory Committee's (EAC) Report**: Ed LaRue reported that there were 19 projects identified, with 14 comment letters, 4 still pending, and 1 not applicable during the reporting period of 6/7/2020 to 8/22/2020. Ed LaRue will work with Greer Dolby to set up a coordinating call with Maggie Fusari, and Judy Hohman for the Northern Corridor, which Ed has spent 50 hours on and Judy the last few weeks, so far.
- **L. Media Committee's Report**: Michael Tuma has been working with Caitlin MacMurtrie to develop a social media outreach plan, which is in draft form. He suggested having one person posting over a two-week period that can then be rotated with one or two other people. We are not sure why the Newsletter has not been completed and distributed. Michael Tuma will contact Halle Kohn to see is we can finalize the draft newsletter.
- **M.** Education and Outreach Committee's Report: Maggie Fusari reported there is limited activity for now given the travel restrictions associated with COVID 129.
- N. Grants Committee's Report: Michael Tuma reported we reissued the Southern California Edison Grant and received a response from the Living Desert, which he will distribute soon. He will share that grant application with committee members to bring recommendations back to the Board. There was a high quality grant request from Dr. Jesse Lewis at Arizona State University for \$10,000, but the feeling was that because of the relatively high costs of the 2020 Symposium, we may not be able to accommodate this or other larger grants at this time. Michael Tuma will contact Dr. Lewis and explain our current inability to award this grant. It would be good for the Fund Raising Committee to look for fundraising opportunities in Arizona.
- O. Fundraising Committee Report: Greer Dolby reported the initial GoFundMe campaign went very well. We raised more than our goal (\$3,500 beyond a \$2,500 target) in one week to perform immediate surveys in the Long-Term Monitoring site burned by the Brush Fire in Arizona. Some money has already been forwarded to researchers who will begin assessing the loss of tortoises to this fire. Greer Dolby will work with Joe Probst to access the funds generated by this initial campaign. Greer is also looking at applying to a National Science Foundation RAPiD program to obtain additional funds (up to \$200k), and coordinating with Arizona Game and Fish, who are reallocating up to \$130,000 for monitoring and sample collection efforts. Greer Dolby is also working with Maggie Fusari to accumulate attendance data for the introductory course for the past 30 years; received social media statistics from Halle Kohn; and shared that Mari Quillman has made progress on selecting an online merchandise manufacturer.
- **P. Mexico Coordination Committee**. Michael Vamstad reported that he has not been able to travel to Mexico due to travel restrictions. To address this limitation, he plans on accomplishing some of this committee's goals through the mail. He continues to study the research permit process in Mexico.

O. Training Program Committee Report:

a. Introductory Training Course Committee's Report: Maggie Fusari provided an explanation for the introductory courses. There have been 27 confirmed registrations already. The price is set at \$150 (\$50 for registered students) for early registration (until September 30) and \$175 (\$65) after that. The Turtle Survival Alliance has agreed to help us present the Zoom session the first week of November. Given their licensing level, we are limited to 500 participants, which would accommodate 450 students. Maggie is planning to give all Board

members free access, and have them participate in question and answer sessions. Mari Quillman has already eblasted the availability of the course to our membership database. Maggie Fusari will work with Michael Tuma to be sure that the event is posted on social media. Maggie can use some help on manipulating Adobe documents, and is planning a contact spread sheet for agency biologists. Peter Woodman plans to produce a video of Rachel Woodard presenting a tortoise handling and health assessment segment that will be made available. The final product should be available in early October. As before, the Council generally provides Bob Parker with \$100 for use of his pet tortoises. The film will be shot at the Maturango Museum, and we should provide a \$100 donation to them. Mark Pahuda has agreed to shoot the video, for \$30/hour, not to exceed about \$300. So, the full cost to produce this film would be about \$500. Motion made (Maggie Fusari), seconded (Kristin Berry), and unanimously approved to provide up to \$500 to produce the video as given above. Several people felt that it was a bad idea to provide this video for unlimited viewing, lest it be construed as an official way to handle tortoises in the absence of formal state and federal permit authorizations. All Board members who have LinkedIn accounts should identify themselves as being an affiliated company.

R. Awards Committee's Reports: Kristin Berry shared there should be no problem making virtual presentations of awards. She has been keeping track of noteworthy researchers publishing papers that should be acknowledge with an award.

S. Annual Symposium Program Committee's Report: Kristin Berry reported there will be a virtual program, but should we use Zoom, obtain our own license, use another format, etc.? Cristina Jones reported there are between 200 and 400 people attending the Turtle Survival Alliance (TSA) sessions given on Thursday mornings, as the replacement for their annual symposium. Kristin suggested that she could get commitments from enough presenters for several hours over a five-day period, for example. Like the November introductory course, TSA is also willing to host the 2021 Symposium. They are using both Zoom and YouTube for simultaneous presentations. It is also possible to pre-record presentations on video that are shown as per a specific schedule. TSA's Zoom cost would be \$180 to have multiple presentations for up to 500 people over a month period, and there would also be personnel time to evaluate. We should definitely charge admission (\$150 per attendee with free attendance by students was suggested), and one person recommended a \$5,000 stipend to TSA. With TSA's current symposium, there appear to be no restrictions to state and federal employees. Most people felt that multiple presentations over a week or more would be better than a solid block of time. It was suggested we make presentations on Tuesdays and Thursdays over a three-week period. We need to avoid The Wildlife Society meeting on February 1-5, 2021 and be done before March. "Zoom happy hours" could be developed, which may be best in the evening. We can also have poster presentations. It would be good to have our typical components, like raffle, online auction, photo contest, awards ceremony, and other events that make people feel like they are at a Council event. We should also develop slides acknowledging sponsors. We should also work with Joe Probst to have an online merchandise store ready for the 2021 Symposium. There will also need to be the Annual Business Meeting at the beginning of the Symposium. Kristin will be seeking speakers, and for those with time restrictions, encourage them to provide videos. Potential session topics could be effects of roads, fire impacts, solar projects, trafficking and rewilding turtles, upgraded listings, new herpesvirus in pet tortoises, memorial services for scientists including Phil Medica (by Todd Esque), Peter Pritchard, and Retha Hofmeyr (by Brian Henen), etc. Kristin plans to have a call for abstracts out by October 1, 2020.

T. COVID and Public Safety Policy: A draft COVID/Public Safety Policy has been distributed and will distributed again by Michael Tuma.

Adjourn: The meeting was adjourned by Cristina Jones at 2:10 pm.

Draft minutes were recorded, later distributed, and modified with Board member review and input, then respectfully submitted as this final version by Ed LaRue, Recording Secretary.

Edward L. LaRue, Jr.

Desert Tortoise Council, Recording Secretary

Ecosystems Advisory Committee Report DTC Board Meeting of 8/22/2020

Note: The table attached to this report on the last page follows the **bold red** numbered outline given below.

1. Mesa Wind Environmental Assessment (Riverside Co, CA)

5/20/2020 – We receive a link to this EA directly from the BLM on 5/20/2020, which is distributed to the Board on 5/22/2020, with comments due on 6/19/2020. The draft letter is circulated for approval on 6/11/2020. After receiving multiple documents from Michael Tuma, the letter is updated and redistributed on 6/12/2020. With eight endorsements, the letter is submitted on the 6/19/2020 deadline.

2. Big Ranch and Gold Basin Grazing Allotment EA (Kingman Field Office, AZ)

6/2/2020 – On 6/2/2020, we receive an announcement from the BLM that this EA, with comments due on 6/30/2020, is now available for comment, which is distributed the same date. The draft comment letter for this project is distributed on 6/24/2020. With five endorsements, the letter is submitted to the BLM on 6/29/2020. The BLM's record of decision was received and distributed on 8/5/2020.

3. Castle Mountain Mine (San Bernardino County, CA)

6/3/2020 – This project came to us from Becky Jones on 6/3/2020, was immediately distributed, had an original comment deadline of 4/20/2020 (we never received notice for that time period), with an extended comment period to 6/24/2020. The draft letter is distributed to the Board on 6/21/2020. With four endorsements, the final letter was submitted on 6/23/2020.

4. CBD Cosign Request Regarding June 4 Executive Order Affecting NEPA and FESA (National)

6/11/2020 – We receive a request from Center for Biological Diversity to cosign a letter take immediate action by including language in the Fiscal Year 2021 Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies appropriations bill to minimize the effect of this executive order on these laws, which was forwarded to the Board on 6/11/2020, with a due date of 6/12/2020. With five endorsements, Ed LaRue lets Stephanie Kurose of CBD know on 6/11/2020 that we are willing to be co-signers.

5. Lake Powell Pipeline Draft Environmental Impact Statement (eastern Nevada)

6/4/2020 – A notice for the Draft EIS on the Lake Powell Pipeline is received on 6/4/2020, with a comment deadline of 9/8/2020, distribute to the Board on 6/15/2020.

6. Northern Corridor Draft EIS and Amended HCP (St George, Utah)

6/11/2020 – Receive link to draft EIS, amended Resource Management Plan, and amended Habitat Conservation Plan on 6/11/2020, with a deadline for comments on 9/10/2020, distribute to the Board on 6/15/2020. After 50 hours of review and tabulated comments, Ed LaRue shares the draft comments with others on 8/10/2020 to begin finalizing our comments.

7. Trump Administration Plan to Graze 24 Million Acres in Nevada (Nevada)

6/15/2020 – The link for this grazing project in Nevada was received on 6/12/2020, forwarded to the Board on 6/15/2020, with a due date of 7/9/2020. Judy Hohman reviews the information and determines no tortoise habitat would be affected, so this is taken off the comment list.

8. Reward Project (Nye County, Nevada)

6/16/2020 – The EA for this BLM project is received from a third party on 6/16/2020, distributed to the Board on 6/24/2020, with a deadline date of 7/16/2020. The draft letter is provided to Ed LaRue by the author on 7/11/2020, which Ed distributes to all Board members on 7/12/2020. With seven endorsements and one recusal, the final letter is submitted on 7/14/2020.

9. Crown Exploration Project Plan of Operations (Nye County, Nevada)

6/16/2020 – The EA for this BLM project is received from a third party on 6/16/2020, distributed to the Board on 6/24/2020, with a deadline date of 7/16/2020. With six endorsements and one recusal, the final letter is submitted on 7/14/2020.

10. Cosign Letter Opposing AB 235 (National)

7/1/2020 – On 7/1/2020, we receive a notice from Chris Clarke of National Parks Conservation Association (NPCA) informing us of the opportunity to cosign a letter from Defenders of Wildlife (DoW) that would oppose Assembly Bill 235, which would allow for unfettered taking of CESA candidate species. The letter was distributed on 7/1/2020, and with four quick endorsements, Ed LaRue let Analise Rivero of DoW know the Council agrees to cosign.

11. Cosign Letter Opposing National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA) (Clark County, NV) 7/10/2020 – On 7/10/2020, receive copy of a letter from Center for Biological Diversity (CBD) asking the Council to cosign this letter opposing the transfer of 850,000 acres from USFWS management to the Air Force, with a decision deadline on 7/13/2020. With nine endorsements, Ed LaRue informs Stephanie Kurose of CBD that the Council is willing to cosign the letter.

12. Moon Mountain Mill Remediation Project near Quartzsite (La Paz, AZ)

7/13/2020 – On 7/13/2020, a third party provides us with a link to this project, out of the Yuma Field Office, which is distributed to the Board on 7/14/2020, with a deadline of 8/10/2020. The draft letter is received on 7/23/2020 from the author and distributed by Ed LaRue on 7/26/2020. In the absence of any endorsements, a slightly modified version was redistributed on 8/4/2020. With five endorsements, the letter is emailed to the BLM on 8/6/2020.

13. RB Inyokern Solar Project (Inyokern, CA)

7/7/2020 – On 7/7/2020, Jeff Aardahl of Defenders of Wildlife provides a notice for this project that was posted on the Kern County Planning Department's website, with a deadline of 8/17/2020, which is forwarded to the Board on 7/14/2020. With that distribution, Ed LaRue informs the Board that he performed all the surveys and drafted the permit application for the project and is therefore recused from writing or commenting on the project. The draft letter, written by Judy Hohman, is distributed to the Board on 8/7/2020. With five endorsements, the final letter was submitted to Kern County with Ken MacDonald's signature on the afternoon of 8/14/2020.

14. Cosign Letter from NPCA on AB 1720 (Riverside, CA)

7/16/20 – On 7/16/2020, we receive a letter from National Parks Conservation Association (NPCA) to cosign a letter opposing AB 1720, which is the latest attempt to provide for the development of the Eagle Crest Pumping Project, which Ed LaRue distributes on the same date. With only four endorsements, we indicate our willingness to cosign the letter on 7/20/2020.

15. Cosign Letter with Conserve Southwest Utah (CSU) to Postpone Northern Corridor Comment Period (St. George, UT)

7/20/20 – On 7/20/2020, we receive a request from CSU to cosign a letter asking BLM to postpone public comment on the Northern Corridor until the effects of the Turkey Farm Road fire on tortoises, which was distributed on 7/20/2020, and endorsed on 7/21/2020 with 4 votes.

16. <u>Vekol Valley Sonoran Pronghorn Release Project (Southern Arizona)</u>

7/29/20 — On 7/29/20 we receive a link directly from BLM about the release of Sonoran pronghorn into Sonoran Desert National Monument (SDNM) south of Interstate-8, which Ed LaRue distributes to the Board on 7/30/2020, asking if this project would affect tortoises. The deadline for comment is 8/12/2020. Ed drafts the letter and distributes it on 8/10/2020. With eight endorsements, the final letter is submitted to BLM on 8/11/2020.

17. Golden Valley Transmission Line (Kingman, AZ)

7/31/20 – On 7/31/20, Richard Spotts provides the Council with a link to this project, which was distributed to the Board on 7/31/2020 and has a deadline of 9/2/2020.

18. NPCA Letter Opposing Eagle Crest (Riverside County, CA)

8/5/2020 — On 8/5/2020, we receive an updated letter from National Parks Conservation Association, addressed to Senate Pro Tem Toni Atkins and Assembly Speaker Anthony Rendon) asking if we want our logo to be on the letter in NPCAs continuing effort to oppose the Eagle Crest project, which is distributed the same day, with endorsement due by 8/7/2020.

19. Minnesota-Connor Mine and Mill Site (Mohave County, AZ)

8/6/2020 — After a failed attempt for BLM to send this directly to Ed LaRue, Becky Jones forwarded the information and link to Ed on 8/6/2020, which was immediately forwarded to the Board, with a due date of 8/30/2020.

Ecosystems Advisory Committee Summary Table from 6/7/2020 to 8/22/2020

Current date for this latest table revision is: 8/15/2020

	Dates (2020)				Board Member Responses Codes: Y = Vote of Yes; N = Vote of No; PI = Provided input; Blank = No Response; R = Recused; A = Authors/Lead Board member; NA - Replied they were not able to respond by indicated date															
No.	Title	Rec'd	Dist	Due	Sent	BJ	BP	CJ	EL	GD	HK	JH	JP	KB	KM	MF	MQ	MT	MV	PW
1	Mesa Wind EA	5/20	6/11	6/19	6/19	Y 6/19			Y/PI 6/19			Y/ PI 6/11	Y 6/13		Y 6/18	Y 6/18		Y 6/11	Y 6/12	
2	Big Ranch, Gold Basin Grazing	6/2	6/24	6/30	6/29	Y 6/25		R 6/2	Y/PI 6/24			Y/ PI 6/24	Y 6/25						Y 6/29	
3	Castle Mountain Mine	6/3	6/21	6/24	6/23	Y 6/25			Y/A 6/21			Y 6/21			Y 6/23	Y/PI 6/23	Y/PI 6/23		Y 6/29	
4	CBD letter support for NEPA/ESA	6/11	6/11	6/12	6/11	Y 6/12			Y/PI 6/11	Y 6/11		Y 6/11	Y 6/13		Y/PI 6/11	Y/PI 6/11	Y 6/11		R 6/18	
5	Lake Powell EIS	6/4	6/15	9/8																
6	Northern Corridor	6/11	6/11	9/10																
7	Grazing in Nevada	6/15	6/15	7/9	N/A	Not in tortoise habitat, so no need to comment														
8	Reward Project	6/16	7/12	7/16	7/14	Y 7/14			Y/PI 7/12	Y 7/15		Y/ PI 7/12			R 7/13	Y/PI 7/12	Y 7/13	Y 7/14	Y 7/14	
9	Crown Exploration	6/16	7/13	7/16	7/14	Y 7/14			Y/A 7/13	Y 7/15		Y 7/13				Y 7/13	Y 7/13		Y 7/14	
10	AB 235 Cosign DoF Letter	7/1	7/1	7/2	7/1	Y 7/3			Y/PI 7/1	Y 7/2		Y/PI 7/1		Y 7/2	Y 7/2	Y/PI 7/1	Y 7/2	Y 7/1	R 7/9	Y 7/2
11	Cosign CBD letter on NDAA	7/10	7/10	7/13	7/13	Y 7/12			Y/PI 7/10			Y 7/11	Y 7/12	Y 7/10	Y 7/13	Y 7/11	Y 7/10	Y 7/10	Y 7/13	
12	Moon Mountain	7/13	7/26	8/10	8/6	Y 8/6			Y/PI 7/27	Y 8/5		Y/ PI 7/23		Y 8/6	Y 8/5	Y 8/4			Y/PI 8/6	
13	RB Inyokern Solar Project	7/7	8/7	8/14	8/14	Y/PI 8/11			R 7/14			Y/ PI 8/7	Y 8/9		Y 8/12				Y 8/12	
14	Cosign AB 1720 NPCA letter	7/16	7/16	7/20	7/20				Y 7/16			Y/PI 7/18			Y 7/17	Y/PI 7/17				
15	Cosign CSU letter Northern Corridor	7/20	7/20	ASAP	7/21		R 7/23		Y 7/20			Y 7/20		Y 7/20	Y 7/23	Y 7/20				
16	Sonoran pronghorn into Vekol Valley	7/29	7/30	8/12	8/11	Y 8/11			Y/A 8/10	Y/PI 8/10		Y/PI 8/10	Y 8/10		Y 8/11	Y/PI 7/30	Y 8/10		Y 8/12	
17	Golden Valley Transmission Line	7/31	7/31	9/2																
18	Cosign NPCA Oppose Eagle Crest	8/5	8/5	8/7	8/6	Y 8/6			Y/PI 8/5			Y 8/5		Y 8/6		Y 8/5			R 8/6	Y 8/5
19	Minnesota-Connor Mine Clean-up	8/6	8/6	8/30																

BJ = Becky Jones, **BP** = Bruce Palmer, **CJ** = Cristina Jones, **EL** = Ed LaRue, **GD** = Greer Dolby, **HK** = Halle Kohn, **JH** = Judy Hohman, **JP** = Joe Probst, **KB** = Kristin Berry, **KM** = Ken MacDonald, **MF** = Maggie Fusari, **MQ** = Mari Quillman, **MT** = Michael Tuma, **MV** = Michael Vamstad, **PW** = Pete Woodman